
 

Download this agenda via the free modern.gov app on your iPad, Android Device 
or Blackberry Playbook.  For information relating to this meeting or to request a 

copy in another format or language please contact: 
, Town Hall, Castle Circus, Torquay, TQ1 3DR  

 

Email: governance.support@torbay.gov.uk - www.torbay.gov.uk  

(1) 

 
 

Wednesday, 13 January 2021 
 

HOW DO WE MAKE BLACK, ASIAN AND MINORITY ETHNIC LIVES 
MATTER IN TORBAY? - REVIEW PANEL 

 

A meeting of How do we make Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic Lives Matter 
in Torbay? - Review Panel will be held on 

 
Thursday, 21 January 2021 

commencing at 5.00 pm 
 

The meeting will be held remotely via Zoom  
(the links to the meeting are set out below) 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://zoom.us/j/98340250167?pwd=aFFFaVhERDdCSDhDeVBJNFNyNVZwQT
09 
 
Meeting ID: 983 4025 0167 
Passcode: 285359 

 
Dial by your location 
        +44 203 481 5240 United Kingdom 
        +44 203 901 7895 United Kingdom 
         

      Members of the Committee 

Councillor Atiya-Alla (Chairman) 

Councillor John Thomas (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor Barrand 

Councillor Steve Darling 

Councillor Loxton 

 

Kofi Yeboah-Aidoo 

Maia Thomas 

Kevin Dixon 

 

Together Torbay will thrive 

https://itunes.apple.com/gb/app/mod.gov/id508417355?mt=8
https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=uk.co.moderngov.modgov&hl=en
http://appworld.blackberry.com/webstore/content/26429152/?lang=en&countrycode=GB
mailto:governance.support@torbay.gov.uk
http://www.torbay.gov.uk/
https://zoom.us/j/98340250167?pwd=aFFFaVhERDdCSDhDeVBJNFNyNVZwQT09
https://zoom.us/j/98340250167?pwd=aFFFaVhERDdCSDhDeVBJNFNyNVZwQT09


(2) 

HOW DO WE MAKE BLACK, ASIAN AND MINORITY ETHNIC LIVES 
MATTER IN TORBAY? - REVIEW PANEL 

AGENDA 
 
1.   Apologies 

 
 

2.   Action Notes 
 

(Pages 4 - 6) 

3.   Declarations of interests 
 

 

(a)   To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect 
of items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Where a Member has a disclosable pecuniary 
interest he/she must leave the meeting during consideration of the 
item.  However, the Member may remain in the meeting to make 
representations, answer questions or give evidence if the public 
have a right to do so, but having done so the Member must then 
immediately leave the meeting, may not vote and must not 
improperly seek to influence the outcome of the matter.  A 
completed disclosure of interests form should be returned to the 
Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 
(Please Note:  If Members and Officers wish to seek advice on any 
potential interests they may have, they should contact Governance 
Support or Legal Services prior to the meeting.) 
 

(b)   To receive declarations of non pecuniary interests in respect of 
items on this agenda 

 

 For reference:  Having declared their non pecuniary interest 
members may remain in the meeting and speak and, vote on the 
matter in question.  A completed disclosure of interests form should 
be returned to the Clerk before the conclusion of the meeting. 
 

4.   How do we make BAME lives matter at Torbay's public 
organisations? 

 

 To question Torbay and South Devon NHS Foundation Trust 
representatives on the key question. 
 

5.   AOB 
 

 

 Members of the public wishing to ask a question of the panel 
are requested to register in advance of the meeting. 

 

 The panel Chair invites members of the public to ask questions of 
the review panel for two minutes. Please register in advance by 
emailing: equality@torbay.gov.uk. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

mailto:equality@torbay.gov.uk


(3) 

 Instructions for the Press and Public for joining the meeting  
 If you are using an iPad you will need to install Zoom which can be 

found in the App Store.  You do not need to register for an account 
just install the software.  You only need to install the software once.  
For other devices you should just be taken direct to the meeting. 
 

 

 Joining a Meeting  
 Click on the link provided on the agenda above and follow the 

instructions on screen.  If you are using a telephone, dial the Zoom 
number provided above and follow the instructions.  (Note: if you 
are using a landline the call will cost up to 13p per minute and from 
a mobile between 3p and 55p if the number is not covered by your 
inclusive minutes.) 

 
You will be placed in a waiting room, when the meeting starts the 
meeting Host will admit you.  Please note if there are technical 
issues this might not be at the start time given on the agenda. 
 
Upon entry you will be muted and your video switched off so that 
only the meeting participants can been seen. When you join the 
meeting the Host will unmute your microphone, ask you to confirm 
your name and update your name as either public or press.  Select 
gallery view if you want see all the participants. 
 
If you have joined the meeting via telephone, your telephone 
number will appear on screen and will be displayed for all to see 
until the Host has confirmed your name and then they will rename 
your telephone number to either public or press. 
 

 

 Meeting Etiquette - things to consider when attending a virtual 
meeting 

 

  Background – the meeting is public and people will be able to 
see what is behind you therefore consider what you will have 
on display behind you. 

 Camera angle – sit front on, upright with the device in front of 
you. 

 Who else is in the room – make sure you are in a position 
where nobody will enter the camera shot who doesn’t want to 
appear in the public meeting.  

 Background noise – try where possible to minimise 
background noise. 

 Aim to join the meeting 15 minutes before it is due to start. 
 

 



  
 

Minutes of the How do we make Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic Lives 
Matter in Torbay? - Review Panel 

 
8 December 2020 

 
-: Present :- 

 
Councillor Jermaine Atiya-Alla (Chairman), Councillor Andrew Barrand, Councillor Steve 

Darling, Councillor Robert Loxton, Kevin Dixon, Maia Thomas and Kofi Yeboah-Aidoo 
 

(Also in attendance:  Councillor Anne Brooks, Councillor Margaret Douglas-Dunbar, 
Councillor Cordelia Law, Councillor Barbara Lewis, Councillor Chris Lewis and Councillor 

Mike Morey)  
 

 

 
16. Apologies  

 
Apologies were received from Councillor John Thomas (Vice Chair of the Panel). 
 

17. Action Notes  
 
Notes of meeting held by the panel on 25 November 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record. 
 

18. How do we make BAME lives matter at Torbay's public organisations?  
 
The key responses from Devon and Somerset Fire and Rescue Service (DSFRS) 
representatives are detailed below: 

 

 That DSFRS had undertaken work with the Eastern European community 

and found that a significant issue was the language barrier for this 

community to engage and understand key messages from the Fire Service 

such as what to do in a fire and who to call (it was stated that only one third 

of the Polish population knew to phone 999 in case of fire). DSFRS found 

that the best way to engage and communicate with this community was to do 

it via ‘community gatekeepers’ who the community trusted 

 DSFRS are now very aware of the issue of language and that many in their 

community do not have English as their first language or have little or no 

English language skills and the Fire Service now they are working on a multi-

language website 

 DSFRS stated that they had no evidence of racial abuse of their staff but that 

they did have a recording process in place to capture this data if it took place 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



How do we make Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic Lives Matter in Torbay? - Review Panel Tuesday, 8 December 2020 
 

 

 DSFRS explained that in terms of recruiting for staff they previously just used 

local postcodes as a restriction but now they have removed this restriction to 

encourage staff recruitment from as wide a range of areas as possible 

 DSFRS also explained that they had dropped the need for formal 

qualifications from their recruitment process and that instead they tested 

candidates to see if they met their thresholds – the reason for doing this was 

that they wanted to encourage candidates who may have qualifications from 

other countries who would find it problematic to apply with qualifications from 

their country of origin 

 DSFRS uses relocation packages for some jobs to attract candidates from 

outside Devon and Somerset 

 DSFRS explained that they were aware that the BAME community were 

under-represented in their workforce and that there were a number of 

barriers to recruiting BAME staff and these were: 

o Because of austerity and cuts their recruitment has been piecemeal 

and this has made it difficult to mount a high profile campaign to 

attract BAME candidates 

o In relation to firefighters the need for some to live 5 minutes from their 

fire station was a challenge as many of the stations are in rural 

locations where the BAME community is poorly represented 

o There is a lack of BAME role models in the Fire Service both locally 

and nationally 

o Perception in community that only role in Fire Service is being a 

firefighter and therefore more needs to be done to promote the wider 

set of roles in the service and the career progression within the 

service to the BAME community 

 

 DSFRS recognised that they need to do more to engage with the BAME 

community in Devon and Somerset but that previous attempts had been 

difficult and disappointing as it was really hard to reach and speak to many 

sections of the BAME community. However, DSFRS is establishing a project 

with some of their stations to encourage them to regularly meet with their 

local communities but this has been temporarily paused due to the pressures 

of the COVID-19 pandemic 

 

 DSFRS explained that the London Fire Brigade had started to use ‘Culture 

cards’ to enable firefighters to have the skills to engage with the BAME 

community 

 

 DSFRS stated that the significant part of their interaction with the BAME 

community was in relation to compliance and enforcement activity on 

businesses in the hospitality sector and that in Torbay they worked with the 

council on a scheme known as ‘Better Business for All’ which sought to 

support BAME businesses to comply with fire and environmental health laws. 

However, DSFRS admitted that they needed to do more on this area and 

Page 5



How do we make Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic Lives Matter in Torbay? - Review Panel Tuesday, 8 December 2020 
 

 

take a position of supporting and educating business owners rather than just 

enforcing the rules 

 

 DSFRS explained that retaining their staff was also important as once you 

have attracted candidates to the Fire Service you need to ensure you retain 

them by making support available. To facilitate this the Fire Service has 

established a Multicultural Staff Support Network which is undertaking 

support and activities such as promoting Black History Month within the 

Service 

 

 DSFRS stated that they are looking to improve their recruitment of BAME 

staff by better utilising social media and advertising in locations where BAME 

people were more likely to see the advert such as Asian or Eastern 

European food supermarkets 

 

 DSFRS explained that they did not have recruitment targets in relation to 

BAME staff as they want their staff to be appointed on merit 

 

 In conclusion DSFRS identified a number of areas where it could do better 

on BAME issues and these are: 

o Identify and gain the trust of and work with the ‘community 

gatekeepers’ in the BAME communities 

o Get better at collecting data on the BAME community so services can 

be adapted and shaped to meet the needs of the BAME community 

o Continue to support the existing BAME staff via the staff network but 

look at others way to support BAME staff 

o Develop key performance measures and indicators on BAME issues 

so the DSFRS can see how it is doing on this issue and address any 

poor performance 

o Continue to constantly explore different ways to attract BAME 

candidates to the Fire Service in Devon and Somerset such as BAME 

open days and challenging old recruitment methods such as word of 

mouth in rural areas 

 

The following actions were identified by the panel: 
 

 Review Panel to consider visiting a Torbay fire station when safe to do so to 

promote BAME issues. 

 

Page 6


	Agenda
	2 Action Notes
	Minutes


